
Berkeley Unified School District 
Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 

December 13th, 2023 – 4:30PM 
 

1. Call to Order 
The meeting was held in a hybrid format, live in the Board Room and via Zoom meeting #811 
4287 6822. The meeting was called to order at 4:31PM.  
 

2. Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum 
Chairperson Roter, Vice-Chairperson Carter and Commissioner Goldstein were present, and a 
quorum was established.  
 

3. Public Comments 
Amanda Dea, Clerical Assistant III at Berkeley Adult School, spoke in support of Rodney Lewis.  
Denise Ray-Diggs, Administrative Assistant III, asked for transparency in the budget and asked to 
see the budget for the past three years for comparison purposes.  
Rodney Lewis, Custodian II, asked for additional information about the examination process, 
specifically on the floating passing point.  
 

4. Approval & Adoption of Agenda 
Given the length of the agenda, the commissioners discussed pushing items 9 and 10 to a future 
meeting.  Commissioner Goldstein moved to approve and adopt the agenda as presented; Vice-
Chairperson Carter seconded the motion,  
Approved, 3-0 
 

5. Approval of Meeting Minutes 
a) November 29th, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 

With no changes to note, Vice-Chairperson Carter moved to approve item 5a; Commissioner 
Goldstein seconded the motion, 
Approved, 3-0 

 
6. Reports 

a) Union 
Mildred Scherr, BCCE Vice-President, gave an update on Phase 2 of the Classification & 
Compensation Study. She reported ongoing member concerns about lack of response from Eric 
Hall & Associates (EHA) when an employee had additional feedback on the revised job 
description. Members are still unclear about the origin of various changes captured in the track 
change format of the revised job description.  
 

b) District 
None. 
 

c) Commissioner 
Chairperson Roter and Vice-Chairperson Carter had nothing to report. Commissioner Goldstein 
reported that she had participated in the Phase 3 review of the Executive Director Classified 
Personnel job description.  

 
d) Personnel Director 

Secretary Castillo explained there were no eligibility lists this meeting since the time period 
between meetings was short and the Classified Personnel Supervisor had been on vacation.  
 
 
 



e) Classification & Compensation Study 
Secretary Castillo reported the Steering Committee had recently met with Chairperson Roter in 
attendance. That meeting included an important discussion about the effectiveness of the 
Steering Committee and what was the best use of time during the meetings. He said that Phase 
2 follow-up is in progress for the 21 classifications that did not respond to the employee review 
of the revised job description. Employees and supervisors in Phase 3 are reviewing the draft 
revised job descriptions. Phase 4 compensation data is in progress and should be presented as 
an informational item at the January 31, 2024 Personnel Commission meeting. Chairperson 
Roter, for the benefit of Vice-Chairperson Carter, gave a brief summary of the Study’s process to 
date. He said it was clear that it became clear during the meeting that the purpose of the 
Steering Committee was to steer EHA’s work and not to intervene when there is a job 
description discrepancy between the employee and supervisor. He said that since there is no 
mechanism in place to resolve disagreements between employee and supervisor, he suggested 
the Personnel Commission might act as a forum to attempt to resolve some of these issues. 
Commissioner Goldstein asked for a list to be compiled showing employee comments and what 
action has been taken to address those comments. She said the mechanism for resolving an 
employee/supervisor disagreement related to duties is the desk audit; there may be some 
classifications that will require a desk audit as part of this Study, but it will be important to agree 
on a threshold of what constitutes a material difference. Ms. Scherr voiced BCCE’s concern for 
the accuracy of EHA’s work considering how quickly the Study is moving along and the amount 
of work to be done by their team. Secretary Castillo reminded the Commissioners of the 
District’s proposed “three-buckets” approach to negotiations, in that some jobs are agreeable, 
some will be meet and confer items, and some may be resolved in a forum with the Personnel 
Commission.  

 
7. Conference Item 

a) Step Advance Request, M.Rodas 
Secretary Castillo said that he intends to work with the District to create a list for the Board’s 
consideration, in which certain classifications demonstrating high need / recruitment / retention 
are pre-approved for step advance consideration. Secretary Castillo said that the Instructional 
Technician Before and After School classification continues to be a high-need recruitment and 
retention area. Monica Rodas has an impressive educational background but she does not have 
the years of professional experience to support her request at Step 5. He recommended the 
Commissioners approve Ms. Rodas’ request at step 3. Vice-Chairperson Carter asked for 
clarification on how Secretary Castillo’s rationale for determining his recommendation for step 
advancements. Secretary Castillo explained that he calculates one step for earning a degree and 
an additional step for each year of relevant professional experience. Ms. Diggs-Ray asked if 
people granted a step advance will potentially receive another salary increase depending on the 
outcome of the Study? Chairperson Roter explained and Secretary Castillo confirmed that it is 
possible an employee who received a step advance could also get a salary increase (due to 
benchmarks and the negotiation process) but it would not affect the salary step. The 
classification is being benchmarked, not the individual.  
Commissioner Goldstein made a motion to approve Ms. Rodas’ step advance request at step 3, 
Vice-Chairperson Carter seconded the motion, 
Approved, 3-0 

b) Ratification of Hearing Officer Agreement 
Chairperson Roter provided background information regarding the need for ratification of the 
hearing officer agreement. Vice-Chairperson Carter asked if there was a cap on the number of 
hours in this hearing. Secretary Castillo, Commissioner Goldstein and Chairperson Roter said 
that the number of hours was not explicit but that it could be a lengthy, robust process. 
Commissioner Goldstein said that she believed the rate was fair, that the hearing officer 
understood the balance of fairness versus expense, and because this hearing is the last stop in 
the process for someone’s livelihood, it is important that it is done properly.  



Vice-Chairperson Carter made a motion to ratify the hearing officer agreement; Commissioner 
Goldstein seconded the motion,  
Approved, 3-0 

c) Allocation of Approved 2023-2024 Personnel Commission Budget 
Chairperson Roter said it had come to his attention that the 2023/24 budget, approved by the 
Personnel Commission and sent to the County in June 2023, had not been fully allocated in the 
Escape system. Secretary Castillo said he became aware of the issue when a bill needed to paid 
and was told there were insufficient funds in the budget. Associate Superintendent of Business 
Services, Pauline Follansbee, indicated in an email correspondence to Mr. Castillo, copying Vice-
Chairperson Carter and the County, that Mr. Castillo had put forward $20k of unauthorized 
District funds and had not obtained the proper BERRA authorizations to fund the department’s 
0.5 FTE Administrative Assistant III position. Mr. Castillo provided the Commissioners with 
documentation showing the District’s process had been properly followed. He reminded the 
Commissioners that Ms. Follansbee had been invited to attend two meetings related to the 
Personnel Commission budget; she, nor any representative of her office, attended. From the 
time the budget was approved by the Personnel Commission in June and sent to the County, he 
heard nothing from Ms. Follansbee and was operating as if the budget had been approved. The 
deadline for the District to protest the budget was June 30, 2023.  
Commissioner Goldstein expressed concern that the Personnel Commission had been operating 
on the 22/23 budget and questioned if other departments had similar issues. She questioned 
the budget allocation of the unauthorized $20k referenced in Ms. Follansbee’s message. Mr. 
Castillo said he could only speculate as Ms. Follansbee did not provide more information. Vice-
Chairperson Carter suggested the Personnel Commission may need to adjust the budget 
showing in Escape to make sure that bills are getting paid. Assistant Superintendent of Human 
Resources, Samantha Tobias-Espinosa explained the BERRA authorization process to the 
Commissioners and said that it had been taken care of properly. She said that she and Ms. 
Follansbee will come to a Personnel Commission meeting once the Governor’s budget is 
announced, to provide information and improve communications between the District and 
Commissioners for future budget planning.   
Vice-Chairperson Carter motioned that Chairperson Roter spearhead communications with the 
District to resolve the budget allocation disagreement; Commissioner Goldstein seconded the 
motion,  
Approved, 3-0 
Commissioner Goldstein motioned that the Executive Director give a recommendation on funds 
that need to be moved around to keep the Personnel Commission operationally viable until the 
budget issues are resolved; Vice-Chairperson Carter seconded the motion, 
Approved,3-0 
 

8. Discussion Item 
a) Agenda Item Request, F. Hernandez 

Ms. Scherr stated that BCCE believes the examination process lacks transparency and fairness, 
specifically as it concerns the floating passing score of the written examinations. She said this 
issue was first brought to the Personnel Commission’s attention in November, 2021 and said 
that BCCE’s Executive Board never received information regarding the criteria for the Executive 
Director to determine an examination’s passing point nor which steps in the recruitment 
process are subject to appeal. Ms. Scherr cited language from the CSPCA Model Merit Rules 
(5.5.3) and California Ed Code (45260,45261, 88080 and 88081) to support BCCE’s belief that a 
BCCE member and promotional candidate for the High School Custodial Supervisor recruitment, 
if seniority credits are applied per CSPCA Model Merit Rules, did indeed pass the written 
examination. BCCE believes that in order to promote an examination process that is fair, firm 
and consistent, all candidates should be aware of the passing score before taking the exam and 
that the passing score should always be 70. Ms. Scherr asked that this promotional candidate be 
allowed to move onto the oral examination. Secretary Castillo said that the current merit rules 



do not include seniority credits but a promotional candidate who makes it onto the eligibility list 
(pass both exams) will automatically be moved to the top of the list. Commissioner Goldstein 
said that her interpretation of the Ed Code cited by Ms. Scherr, is that if BCCE feels strongly 
about a set passing score of 70, it should be negotiated as part of the Collective Bargaining 
Agreement. If not, then the passing score of an examination rests at the discretion of the 
Personnel Commission. Vice-Chairperson Carter said a set score should be supported by the 
Personnel Commission. He believes that if the score needs to be changed for efficiency reasons, 
those particular examinations should come before the Personnel Commission to determine the 
passing score. He said that making these decisions in a silo creates distrust and does not 
promote transparency. Chairperson Roter said he supports putting a set passing score into the 
Merit Rules and that the criteria for changing the passing score needs to be shared for 
transparency. He is concerned about privacy and efficiency if the Personnel Commission 
becomes involved in deciding the passing score for a particular examination. Commissioner 
Goldstein asked about the use of a floating score by other Merit Districts. Secretary Castillo said 
the floating score is common practice while Ms. Scherr said nearby merit districts use a set score 
of 70. Commissioner Goldstein said the Personnel Commission should rely on the appeal process 
as outlined in the merit rules to resolve any issues related to examination scores. Vice-
Chairperson Carter reiterated that consulting the Personnel Commission prior to changing a 
passing score will eliminate any question of transparency. Erin Arinez, Classified Personnel 
Supervisor, said that she supports a more transparent process but cautioned Vice-Chairperson 
Carter’s suggestion would prevent eligibility lists getting into the hands of the hiring manager in 
a timely manner. Secretary Castillo said he welcomes an ongoing conversation with BCCE about 
the examination process. 
Chairperson Roter made a recommendation to hold the creation of the High School Custodial 
Supervisor eligibility list pending receipt and analysis of examination participation data; Vice-
Chairperson Carter agreed; Commissioner Goldstein objected. Secretary Castillo said that it 
should be noted that the Personnel Commission was going against the merit rules as it concerns 
the appeal process. Chairperson Roter said he did not believe the rules were being 
circumvented as the question of a set passing score needs to be resolved. 
 

b) Agenda Item Request, M. Ferguson 
Marie Ferguson, School Administrative Assistant II / Sub Specialist, explained that since February 
2023, she has been assigned new duties related to the enrollment process. She said that since 
these duties had previously been done by a Student Admissions Specialist at range 52, she 
should be getting out-of-class pay for the work she is now expected to complete. She also said 
that her draft revised job description did not show any aspects of the School Administrative 
Assistant II in the basic function. She added that Board Policy 50.11 does not stipulate that this 
work should be done by anyone at the high school.  Vice-Chairperson Carter questioned how 
much impact the Personnel Commission can have since the main concern is workload. Secretary 
Castillo said that EHA reviewed Ms. Ferguson’s position and determined that the work being 
done was within the scope of the job description. In light of the new work on Ms. Ferguson’s 
desk per Board Policy 50.11, he suggested to the District that a solution should be made, one of 
which could be out-of-class pay. He has offered to help facilitate a discussion with Ms. Ferguson 
and the District to reach a solution. Chairperson Roter said he does not believe this is a matter 
of reclassification as there is no gradual accretion of duties. He suggested that a desk audit 
would determine if the new work merits out-of-class compensation. Chairperson Goldstein 
asked for clarification as to if this work was simply shifted from admissions to the high school or 
if it involved work previously done by positions eliminated in the Admissions department. 
Secretary Castillo confirmed that staffing had not changed in the Admissions department. Ms. 
Diggs-Ray said that when Ms. Ferguson did her Job Content Questionnaire and had her 
interview with EHA, she did not have this work. Furthermore, she said that EHA created a new 
job description for the School Administrative Assistant I who works with the Registrar. The new 
classification is School Administrative Assistant II – Admissions; the Registrar does not register 



students. She believed that no extra duties were to be assigned during the Study and asked that 
either Ms. Ferguson should be compensated or move the work back to the Admissions 
department.  Chairperson Roter reiterated that a desk audit should be conducted and EHA 
needs to review the draft revised job description, especially since the new work came after Ms. 
Ferguson was interviewed. Secretary Castillo said he believes a desk audit will not produce new 
information; the supervisors involved all say there is more work but not new work. He is 
counting on the District to find a solution and get resources in where they are needed. 
Chairperson Goldstein said it is important to investigate the Student Admission Specialist and 
School Administrative Assistant II-Sub Specialist job descriptions to determine discrepancies. 
The Commissioners asked Secretary Castillo to help facilitate conversations with all stakeholders 
to reach an equitable decision since this is not a Personnel Commission matter and to provide 
an update at the January meeting. Vice-Chairperson Carter expressed his appreciation of Ms. 
Ferguson’s service to BUSD.  
 

9. Closed Session 
The commissioners unanimously voted to defer the closed session item (Executive Director’s 
Review) to the next meeting and agreed to hold the closed session at the beginning of the 
meeting.  
 

10. Report from Closed Session 
No closed session.  
 

11. Public Comments 
Ms. Diggs-Ray asked that page numbers be included in the entire agenda packet and thanked 
the Personnel Commission for considering the issue of the passing score.  
 

12. Next Meeting 
The next regular meeting of the Personnel Commission will be held on January 31 at 4:30 pm in 
the Boardroom.  
 

13. Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:14 pm. 

 


